
WASHINGTON ISLAND ZONING AND PLANNING 
COMMITTEE MEETING 
March 21, 2023 – 4:00pm 

Washington Island Community Center Rutledge Room & 
Virtual Option, Call in Instructions Below 

AGENDA  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 
2.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES  of the November 9, 2023 meeting 
4.  CORRESPONDENCE:  
5.  ACTION ITEMS  
 

a. Elect WIZAP Chairman    Discussion/Motion 
 
b. Elect WIZAP Secretary    Discussion/Motion 

   
c. Opening for WIZAP Committee   Discussion/Motion 
 
d. Variance Request – Sandra L. Bassler, Trustee of William & Sandra 

Bassler Trust has requested a variance from Section 4.08(8)(f)2.b.(2) of 
the Door County Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance which requires 
Multiple Occupancy Developments to be located at least 40’ from side lot 
lines when adjacent to a single family residence. The property is located at 
1145 Old West Harbor Road, parcel number 028-01-02332923Q.  
        
 Discussion/Motion 

 
e. Island Zoning Overlay    Discussion/Motion 
 

 
6. REPORTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
7.  COMMUNITY INPUT 
8.  BOARD INPUT 
9.  NEXT MEETING :  Suggestions? 
10. ADJOURN 

MORE THAN TWO TOWN BOARD MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT 
WISCONSIN’S OPEN MEETINGS LAW NOTICE (WIS.STAT. §19.84) 

Posted March 1, 2023 
 

THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME 
Check the Town website for our posted agendas & minutes at: 

www.washingtonisland-wi.gov 
 

Computer, Tablet or Smartphone Link 
http://meet.goto.com/725682317 

 
Call in Phone Number 

Access Code: 725-682-317 
United States: +1 (312) 757-3121 



 1 

WASHINGTON ISLAND ZONING & PLANNING 
COMMITTEE MEETING - Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday November 9, 2022 
Rutledge Room, Washington Island 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order at 4:02 PM by Chairman Kirby Foss 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Michael Kickbush, Kirby Foss, Connie Smith, Larry Kahlscheuer 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Doug Hanson 
  
OTHERS PRESENT:  None 
 
2.  APPROVAL of AGENDA:  The agenda was approved as written. Motion by Smith, 2nd by Kickbush. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  The minutes April 12, 2022 meeting were approved as written. Motion 
by Kickbush, 2nd by Smith. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
4.  CORRESPONDENCE: None. 
 
ACTION ITEMS:  
 
5. a. Text Amendment – The Town of Liberty Grove has submitted a request to change the Door Co. 
Zoning Ordinance to allow Auto Repair and Trade or Contractor Establishments in Heartland-10 (HL 10) 
Zoning Districts with a Conditional Use Permit. Motion by Kickbush, second by Smith that WIZAP 
recommend Denying a change to the Door Co. Zoning Ordinance allowing Auto Repair & Trade or 
Contractor Establishments in Heartland-10 (HL 10) zoning districts.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
5. b. Elect WIZAP Chair – tabled for further discussion at the next meeting. 
 
5. c. Elect WIZAP Secretary – tabled for further discussion at the next meeting. 
 
5. d. Opening for WIZAP Committee – No action taken. 
 
6.  REPORTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS: None. 
 
7.  COMMUNITY INPUT: None. 
 
8.  BOARD INPUT: None. 
 
9.  NEXT MEETING:  As needed. 
 
10.  ADJOURNMENT:  MOTION by Kickbush to adjourn, 2nd by Smith. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Meeting was adjourned at 4:25 pm. 
 
Submitted by Mike Kickbush, Secretary  



RECOMMENDATION 
 

WASHINGTON ISLAND PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMITTEE 

 
March 21, 2023 

 
      
 
     At the March 21, 2023 meeting of the Washington Island Zoning and Planning 
Committee, an election for the chairman of the committee was held.  
 
     Motion by Connie Smith, 2nd by Mike Kickbush to nominate Doug Hansen to the 
chair of the committee.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Michael G. Kickbush AIA 
Secretary 
Washington Island Planning & Zoning Committee 



RECOMMENDATION 
 

WASHINGTON ISLAND PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMITTEE 

 
March 21, 2023 

 
      
 
     At the March 21, 2021 meeting of the Washington Island Zoning and Planning 
Committee, an election for the office of secretary was held.  
 
     Motion by Doug Hansen, 2nd by Connie Smith to nominate Mike Kickbush to the 
office of secretary.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Michael G. Kickbush AIA 
Secretary 
Washington Island Planning & Zoning Committee 



RECOMMENDATION 
 

WASHINGTON ISLAND PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMITTEE 

 
March 21, 2023 

 
 

At a meeting of the Washington Island Zoning and Planning meeting held on March 21, 
2023 it was the unanimous recommendation of the committee members present that 
Susan Buchanan be made a member of WIZAP. 
 
The motion to recommend Susan Buchanan as a member of WIZAP was made by Doug 
Hansen, 2nd by Mike Kickbush. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
The committee believes she would be a great addition. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Michael G. Kickbush AIA 
Secretary 
Washington Island Planning & Zoning Committee 
 







Return to Door County Planning Department, 421 Nebraska St., Sturgeon Bay, WI, 54235. FAX:  (920)746-2387.   
 

Door County Planning Department 
Request for Town Recommendation 

 
Sandra L. Bassler, Trustee of William K. & Sandra L. Bassler Trust (Owner) has requested a 
variance from Section 4.08(8)(f)2.b.(2) of the Door County Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance.  
Section 4.08(8) (f)2.b.(2) of the Door County Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance requires 
Multiple Occupancy Developments to be located at least 40’ from side lot lines when adjacent 
to a single family residence. 
 
The applicants are proposing a 25’ X 27’, two story addition to the existing southern cottage of 
a Multiple Occupancy Development.  The addition will be located as close as 23’ to the south 
side lot line. 
 

The Zoning and Planning Committee of the Town of Washington held a legally noticed and posted 

meeting on  3/21/23  , at which, by a vote of  3 (Yea) to  3 (Nay), the town 

recommended (check one)  X SUPPORT  ___   DENIAL  for a variance. 

 
Reason(s) for the town's decision:          
The proposed residence which is being added onto predates the current Door County Zoning 
Ordinance and has a certain amount of inalienable rights associated with it.  The addition will be no 
more closer to the south side yard property line then the existing residence that is being added 
onto.  The adjacent neighbors that are most affected have submitted letters of support.  Harm to the 
public interest was not discussed. 
 
 
Is the proposal consistent with the Town Comprehens ive Plan?      
The proposed addition is a permitted use and allowed for in the zoning district it is in which is 
Recreational Commercial (RC). 
 
 
Concerns or objections the town may wish to see pot entially addressed through conditions : 
Owner intends to install a tree row on the south property line per site plan by architect. Owner also 
said the intention is to create a primary residence and not a rental property. 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                    
Town Clerk Signature     Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*See reverse for variance criteria.



 
GENERAL CRITERIA REGARDING ZONING HEARING CASES IN DOOR COUNTY 

 
This document is intended to provide a general guide to the issues and criteria to consider when making 
decisions regarding this type of zoning hearing.  It should not be considered a complete guide to 
applicable statutes or ordinances.  
 
 
PETITION FOR VARIANCE 
(See Door County Zoning Ordinance section 11.06 and Wisconsin Statutes section 59.694.) 
 
A petition for variance is a request to relax one or more of the dimensional requirements or restrictions 
of the ordinance (road, water, or property line setbacks; building size or height, etc.).  The Door County 
Zoning Ordinance only allows so-called “area” variance petitions – it does not permit application for a 
variance where a use not allowed in that zoning district would be established (a “use” variance).  Note 
that variances “run with the land” and not with the applicant; an approved variance is permanently 
attached to the parcel in question.   
 
By state statute, petitions for variance from the county zoning ordinance are heard and decided upon at 
a public hearing before the board of adjustment or appeals (called the Board of Adjustment in Door 
County), members of which are appointed by the County Board of Supervisors.  Appeals of Board of 
Adjustment decisions are heard in the court system.   
 
Criteria for evaluating “area” variance petitions 
(Note:  Responses to the three bolded questions below should be "yes" in order to justify granting the 
variance in accordance with legal/case law criteria.)   
 
• Do physical limitations of the property prevent com pliance with ordinance standards?  

Examples of physical limitations include wetland presence, parcel shape, steep slopes, etc.   
• Will granting the variance have no affect on the pu blic interest?   

o Public interest includes additional runoff, affects on the quality of fish or wildlife habitat, 
impacts on scenic beauty, etc.  Cumulative effects must be considered.   

o Public interest includes the interest of the public at large, not just that of nearby property 
owners.   

o Lack of local opposition does not in itself mean that a variance will not harm the public 
interest.   

o A variance should include only the minimal relief necessary to allow reasonable use of 
the property.   

o The board's actions should be consistent with stated ordinance objectives.   
• Is an “unnecessary hardship” present?   

o Does compliance with the ordinance unreasonably prevent the owner from using the 
property for a permitted purpose, or is conformity with restrictions unnecessarily 
burdensome for the property owner? 

o Is there a unique physical property limitation?  (See above.)   
o The variance is not warranted if the physical character of the property allows a landowner 

to develop or build in compliance with the zoning ordinance.   
o Financial hardship is not grounds for a variance.   
o Self-imposed hardship or personal preference are not grounds for a variance.  (Note that 

“self-imposed hardship" has been determined by courts to mean either current or former 
owners.) 

o The hardship cannot be one that would have existed in the absence of zoning.   
 
One final consideration:  Will granting the variance serve an overriding public interest?  (If yes, granting 
the variance may possibly be justifiable even if other criteria point toward denial.)   
 





























RECOMMENDATION 
 

WASHINGTON ISLAND PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMITTEE 

 
March 21, 2023 

 
 

At a meeting of the Washington Island Zoning and Planning meeting held on March 21, 
2023 it was the unanimous recommendation of the committee members present that the 
following motion be approved. 
 
Relative to the Door Co. Zoning Ordinance, the Washington Island Overlay (chapter 
3.15(3)) was reviewed and was determined to meet the current needs of the island and 
shall be kept as is and as it was envisioned by previous committees.  Any changes in 
“clean up” language need to be consistent with the intent of the overlay. Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Michael G. Kickbush AIA 
Secretary 
Washington Island Planning & Zoning Committee 
 


